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Responses

Mrs Sue Brown 7 Goldcrest Close Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 0UX (Objects) 
Comment submitted date: Mon 20 Nov 2017 

I wish to register an objection to the above Planning Application for a HMO at No.1 
Shearwater Road Lincoln. _This is a highly desirable residential area of a unique beauty, 
charm and character and this development is not suitable within this area._At a previous 
extension planning meeting it was clear that No 1 was operating illegally as a HMO 
without consent, and was causing grave issues. It has continued to cause considerable 
inconvenience & concerns to neighbours and it is still used to house multiple tenants. As 
permission for an extension to the property has been granted, the situation can only get 
worse._We were assured by the council at the last meeting that the HMO situation would 
be investigated and despite these assurances, we would like to know why nothing has 
been done to prevent this activity. The house does not comply with safety standards 
required for a HMO. _The position of the property at No 1 Shearwater is dangerous in 
respect of vehicle access and parking, this has been a considerable issue which was 
raised at a previous meeting (regarding the extension.) Having been granted the 
extension will have capacity for up to 7/8 bedrooms, and therefore potentially 16 or more 
tenants and there is insufficient parking facilities to accommodate their vehicles._We 
have never had any objections to the extension itself, but we do have objections to the 
property being used as a HMO. We attended the planning meeting for the extension and 
it was discussed that no application for a HMO had been received and should one be 
submitted it would NOT be granted. __Hopefully your previous views have not changed 
and this application will be declined._Yours sincerely__Sue Brown_7 Goldcrest 
Close_Lincoln_LN6 0UX 

David Bishop 6 Shearwater Road Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 0XX (Objects) 
Comment submitted date: Wed 15 Nov 2017 

Dear Sir or Madam,

I wish to register our objection to the above Planning Application for a HMO at No.1 
Shearwater Road Lincoln on the following grounds:
1) This is a purely residential area of a fairly unique character and desirability and this is 
not a desirable development within this area.
2) The property in question is in a dangerous position regarding vehicle parking and 
access, an issue which was raised at the previous meeting regarding the Planning 
Application for the proposed extension to the property.
3) The approved plans for extensions will facilitate up to 8 bedrooms, which could 
potentially house 16 + tenants and their vehicles.
4) Whilst we realise, appreciate and have no objection to the extension, it is the 
purposes for which it will be used that we have objection and we all know that without 
this approval for a HMO, the proposed extension would not be viable.

It has been noted by all of us who live in this vicinity that despite assurances from the 
Council representative at the previous planning meeting that operating a HMO without 
consent is illegal, the owner has continued to have multiple tenants during the time since 
that meeting. We would like to know why no action has been taken to stop this activity as 
the building is purely residential and therefore does not comply with any safety 



standards required of such a building.
As a consequence of recent events it would be interesting to see who would carry the 
blame should any tragedy occur in that building in light of the repeated warnings to the 
Council that this building was being used for an illegal commercial operation.

Yours sincerely

David Bishop
6 Shearwater Road
Lincoln
LN6 0XX



































LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE POLICE HEADQUARTERS

PO Box 999

LINCOLN  LN5 7PH

Fax:  (01522) 558128 

DDI:  (01522) 558292

email 

john.manuel@lincs.pnn.police.uk

Your Ref: App. 2017/1185/C4                                                                 31st October 2017

 

Development & Environmental Services

City Hall, Beaumont Fee

Lincoln, LN1 1DF

Re – 1 Shearwater Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN6 0XX (HMO)

Thank you for your correspondence and opportunity to comment on the proposed 
development. I would request that you consider the following points that if adhered to would 
help reduce the opportunity for crime and increase the safety and sustainability of the 
development.

Historically HMOs can become vulnerable to crime and anti-social behaviour therefore it is 
important that the best security arrangements and provision are planned for such premises.

Lincolnshire Police has no formal objections to the planning application in principle but would 
recommend that the initial advisory recommendations are implemented.

The new regulations in respect of approved windows and doors may apply to this 
development and presume that compliance will be ensured by way of Building Regulations.



External doors and windows

Building Regulations (October 1st 2015) provides that for the first time all new homes will 
be included within Approved Document Q: Security – Dwellings (ADQ).

Approved document Q applies to all new dwellings including those resulting from change of 
use, such as commercial premises, warehouse and barns undergoing conversions into 
dwellings. It also applies within Conservation Areas.

This will include doors at the entrance to dwellings, including all doors to flats or apartments, 
communal doors to multi-occupancy developments and garage doors where there is a direct 
access to the premises. Where bespoke timber doors are proposed, there is a technical 
specification in Appendix B of the document that must be met.

Windows: in respect of ground floor, basement and other easily accessible locations.

The secured by design requirement for all dwelling external doors is PAS 24.2016 (doors of 
an enhanced Security) or WCL 1 (WCL 1 is the reference number for PAS 23/24 and is 
published by Warrington Certification Laboratories). 

All ground floor windows and doors and those that are easily accessible from the ground 
must conform to improved security standard PAS24:2016 or equivalent approved standard.

Individual Flat or Unit Doors.

Door-sets providing access to the individual bedrooms shall be of robust construction and 
fire rated (FD30 or higher), and installed with a lock certificated to BS 8621 or PAS 8621, 
and will be fitted with a minimum of two hinge bolts or hinges with a similar integral facility to 
ensure protection in the event of a hinge failure under following a criminal attack, and 
installed with a securely fixed, robust planted stop, OR Shall meet the same physical 
specification as ‘front door’ (paragraphs 21, excluding any requirements for postal delivery).

Lighting

Lighting should be designed to cover the external doors and be controlled by photoelectric 
cell (dusk to dawn) with a manual override.  The use of low consumption lamps with an 



efficacy of greater than 40 lumens per circuit watt is required; it is recommended that they be 
positioned to prevent possible attack. 

Bin Storage

Internal communal bin and bicycle stores within blocks of flats must have no windows and be 
fitted with a secure door set that meets the same physical specification as ‘front door’ and 
specifically Section 2, paragraphs 21.1 to 21.6 and 21.8 to 21.13.

This will ensure that such stores are only accessible to residents. The locking system must 
be operable from the inner face by use of a thumb turn to ensure that residents are not 
accidentally locked in by another person. A bicycle store must also be provided with stands 
with secure anchor points or secure cycle stands.

External bins stores and home composting containers (supplied to meet ‘Code for 
Sustainable Homes’ ‘Was 3’) should be sited in such a way that they cannot be used as a 
climbing aid to commit crime.

Intruder Alarm

Where an intruder alarm is installed it should be complaint and meet the standards of BSEN 
50131. It is recommended that any alarms system is provided and installed by a police 
approved company registered with the National Security Inspectorate (NSI) or the Security 
Systems & Alarms Inspection Board (SSAIB). It is also important that residents are clearly 
instructed in its use.

Utilities

In order to reduce the opportunities for theft by ‘bogus officials’ the utility meters should, 
where possible, be located to the outside of the dwelling at a point where they can be 
overlooked. This will negate the need for an official to enter the building in order to read a 
meter, which will in turn reduce the opportunity for distraction burglary. Where possible utility 
meters in multi occupancy developments should be located on the ground floor between 
access controlled

doors (air lock system) so that access can be restricted to the meters 

Note 33.1: Where a utility provider refuses to provide external meters, and there is an 
obvious (historic) risk of distraction burglary within the location, the developer should 
consider an alternative supplier.



Landscaping

Landscaping should not impede the opportunity for natural surveillance and must avoid the 
creation of areas of concealment.  Any landscaping should be kept to a maximum growth 
height of 1 metre.  Whilst any tree should be pruned to a minimum height of 2 metres, 
thereby maintaining a clear field of vision around the development. Trees when fully grown 
should not mask any lighting columns or become climbing aids.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarification.

Please refer to New Homes 2016 which can be located on www.securedbydesign.com New 
Homes 2016 36.1 this includes details of the criteria for bespoke window fittings that may 
apply to this development.

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract.  Neither the 
Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice given.  
However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be committed.

Yours sincerely,

John Manuel MA BA (Hons) PGCE Dip Bus.

Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor

http://www.securedbydesign.com/

